Online Film Ordering for Directors

User's Guide



Introduction

The Online Film Ordering User's Guide is designed to help Family History Center Directors understand the procedures and guidelines for using the site.

Table of Contents

Introduction	1
Life Cycle of an Order	2
Director Authentication	3
Film Status Definitions	3
Check Film Status	5
Mark Films as Received	7
Mark Films as Returned	9
Add Private Films to FHC Inventory	11
Upload a CSV File	12
FHC Patron Information	13
Film Pricing	16
Patron Assistance Policy	18
Microfilm Use Agreement	18
FamilySearch Support	20

Life Cycle of an Order

By logging into the system, directors can search, see history statuses, and see contact information on a particular order. They will also be able to see whether an item has been received, returned, or backordered. To access the Administration Panel for Online Film Ordering, go to https://familysearch.org/films/admin.



The life cycle of an order begins by searching for a microfilm or microfiche to order. Then you add the film to your cart and complete the checkout process to pay for the film. Once the order has been placed, the order is put in a processing queue. This queue gives the patron 24 hours to cancel the order in case he or she accidently ordered the wrong film or decided the film was no longer needed. After 24 hours, the order is processed. If the film is available, it will be shipped to the selected family history center and the patron will receive an e-mail notifying them of the shipment. If the loan is short-term, the date shipped will mark the beginning of the 90 day loan period.

If the film is not immediately available, it will be placed on backorder and the patron will receive an e-mail notification. Once the microfilm has been received at the family history center, the patron will be notified by e-mail that the film has arrived and is ready for viewing. Seven days before the film needs to be returned, the patron will be sent a renewal notification. At that time, the patron can either renew the film for an additional 60 days or have the film returned.

Director Authentication

A special administrative section exists for a center director to be able to manage his/her film inventory and patrons. You can access the admin section by going tohttp://familysearch.org/films/admin. Your username is your LDS Mail e-mail address in a unique format. For example, if your email address is ab_banff@ldsmail.net, then your username will be ab_banff_ldsmailnet. You replace "@" with "_" and remove the ".".

If you forget your password, click "Forgot Password" and enter your e-mail address. An e-mail will be sent to you with your new password.

Film Status Definitions

Some information is not available on microfilm and microfiche. Due to contractual agreements with the copyright holders, some records on microfilm or microfiche may not circulate to family history centers. The Family History Library Catalog should indicate that there is no circulation to a family history center. Please check the catalog carefully before placing your order.

Definition of Loan Types:

- Extended Microfiche Loan-Noreturn date is specified. All microfiche orders are extended loans.
- Short-term Microfilm Loan-90 day loan. These 90 days include a 60-day loan period with an additional 30 days to allow for shipping. Some areas will receive the film much sooner than 30 days and will have the additional time to view the film. FamilySearch guarantees the film will be at the Center for at least 60 days up to 90 days. The 90 days begin once the film is marked as "shipped". The film will be returned once the 90 day loan period has expired.
- **Extended Microfilm Loan**--Noo return date specified. The following exceptions can cause the film to be returned or will not allow the film to be ordered:
 - \circ The Director determines the film is no longer being used.
 - The microfilm has become restricted and is no longer available for viewing.
 - The film already exists in the patron's default family history center.
- Short-term Microfilm Loan Renewal-Renews an existing loan from a center or library. The purchase of this loan will renew the loan for an additional 60 days, upon completion of the original 90 days.
- **Extended Microfilm Loan Renewal**-Converts a short-term loan to an extended loan, with no return date specified. The following exceptions can cause the film to be returned or will not allow the film to be ordered:
 - The Director determines the film is no longer being used.
 - \circ $\;$ The microfilm has become restricted and is no longer available for viewing.
 - The film already exists in the patron's default family history center.

Statuses on an entire order:

- **Pending.** Your order has not been completed due to a lack of payment information or funding. The only way for the order to be processed is for you to reorder the items.
- **Processing.** Your payment has been received and you now have 24 hours to cancel the order.
- **Requested.** The order has been processed and is now either awaiting shipment or is being requested to the Vault. Your order has been received for processing. See "Track statuses of film order items" below for statuses that apply to each film within the order.
- **Canceled.** You or FamilySearch has canceled the entire order. To successfully cancel an order, you must cancel it within 24 hours from the time the order was placed. You should expect a refund notification within 4 business days if payment was processed. However, the transaction may not show on your statement immediately. You will need to check with your bank.
- **Executed.** All of the films in your order are Received, Returned, Renewed, or Canceled. If all films in the order are canceled, the order is canceled rather than executed.

Track statuses of film order items:

- **Pending.** This film is waiting to be processed. No action has been taken yet.
- **Requested.** The order has been processed and is now either awaiting shipment or the request will be changed to "backordered".
- **Backordered.** This status is set when we are in the process of making a copy of the film prior to shipment. This process may take up to 90 days before the film is ready to be shipped. A track status update email is sent notifying the patron of the delay.
- **Shipped.** This status is set when a film has shipped in the last 24 hours and is now in transit to the local family history center. If the loan type is short-term, the return date will be 90 days from the shipping date. You will receive an email notification.
- **Received.** The film has arrived at the selected family history center. Shipping may take up to 30 days, depending on where you are in the world.You will receive an email notification when your film arrives.
- **Returned.** The family history center has shipped the film back to FamilySearch. It is no longer at the center. This usually applies to short-term microfilm loans but can also apply to extended loans when they are returned. One week prior to the return date, an email is sent to the patron notifying them that their film is about to expire and that they should renew the film.
- **Canceled.** An individual film can be canceled by the patron within 24 hours when the order status is set to "Processing." Once it is set to "Requested", the order will be fulfilled. To request an individual film cancellation, contact Support. If you wish to cancel the entire order, go to your Recent Orders under My Account and Cancel the specific order. Canceling an order or individual film will activate a refund. Refunds can take up to 4 business days. Cancelling orders with a status "pending" will not activate a

refund because a "pending" order never received payment. A cancellation and refund email will be sent separately.

• Renewed Status. A film's track status is set to "renewed" only for a film renewal. These orders update the return date only and are not processed for shipment because the films already exist in the center. A short-term renewal updates the return date 60 days. An extended renewal converts a short-term film loan to an extended loan. Since we don't ship films for renewals, the order status will automatically be set to "Executed" if all of the line items in the order are renewals.

Check Film Status

Do a film search for films that have been received by the family history center and have been placed in inventory. Check a film's order status if the film has been ordered but not yet received.

To find a film in the family history center's inventory, use the following steps:

Step 1: Enter your user name and password. Click **Login**.

Step 2:

Mouse over the Films tab, and click **Film Search**.

Step 3:

In the Film number box, enter the Film you would like to view.

Note: You may filter your search using any of the columns. You may search by FHC Name, Order #, Patron first name, Patron last name, Patron email, Return Date, or Film Status. Use this functionality to create custom reports about your film inventory. Use your browser's print button to print the reports if you prefer viewing the information on paper.

Magento	Log in to Admin Pan	iel	
0	User Name: Forgot your password?	Password:	LUgitt

🍿 Magen	to ⁻ Admin Pa	nel				
FHC Patrons	Transactions	System	Films			
			Film Se	earch		
Search Films			Film Pr	ivate Co	llection	
			CSV Fil	e Impor	ter for Films	
Page 1] of 24 pages V	iew 20 💌	Restric	tion Coo	le Lookup	



To find a film's status that has not been marked as shipped or received into inventory yet, but has been ordered, follow these steps:

Step 1:

Enter your user name and password. Click **Login**.

Step 2:

Mouse over the Transactions tab, and click **Orders**.

Note: You may filter your search using any of the columns. For example, search by Purchased On to see orders purchased on a certain date.

Step 3: Enter the Order #.

Step 4: Click the Search button.

Step 5: Click the View link.

Note: Here you are able to view the customer's account information and billing address.

Aagento	Log in to Admin Panel	
0	User Name:	Password:
	Forgot your password?	Login

FHC Pat	63	Transactions System									
		Orders									
Order	-	Transactions									
Page 1		Recurring Profiles (beta) Billing Agreements	r paj	e i Tota	1 149 1	ecords found	😝 Export to	CSV	Export	Reset Filter	Search
Samp Al.	U-selec	1.43 E Belen Visible (.Dr	salest Vision	i O items	select	ed.			Actions		Submit
_	rder #	Purchased From (Store)	Purcha	ed On	4	Bill to Name	Family History Center	G.T. (Base)	G.T. (Purch	ased) Status	Act
Any 💌			From:	10				From:	From:		-
10000 (0000 (0000))			To:					To:	To:		

0e 🖂	I add	nanes View 20 In	er nane i Total 1	records found				Res		Search
elect Al	Unselect.	All Select Visible Ur	select Visible 0 items	selected		Actio	ns		~	Submit
- 1	Order #	Purchased On	Bill to Name	Family History Center	G.T. (Ba	ise)	G.T. (Pu	chased)	Status	Action
477	100009	rom: 🛒			From:		From:		6	•
		o: 💌			To :		To :			
_	100009	Oct 15, 2009	Brian Corrales	Bendioo Australia Family History Center		\$ 13.44		AS 15.50	Request	d View



Note: In the Product column, you can find the film number. In the Track Status column is the status of the film.

Product	Item Status	Track Status	Driginal Price	Price	Qty		Subtotal	Tax Amount	Tax Percent	Discount Amount	Row Tota
Extended Microfilm Loan SKU: microfilm- indefinite <i>Film No.:</i> 191	Ordered	Received	\$0.00	\$0.00	Ordered	1	\$0.00	\$0.00	0%	\$0.00	\$0.00

Note: If the film is not in inventory and marked as shipped, you should contact Family History Center Support to have the film marked as "Received." Support will then investigate why the film did not get marked as "shipped."

Mark Films as Received

After films are ordered, and you receive them in the mail, you will need to mark the films "Received" to add them into the family history center's inventory. Films marked "Received" are considered ready for viewing. Note: Films are mailed to the mailing address associated with the family history center. Typically, this is different from the physical location of the center. If you need to change the mailing address, please contact Support.

Step 1: Once you have signed in to the Admin Panel with your user name and password, click the **Log in** button.

Step 2: From the Films drop-down menu, click **Film Search**.

1	Log in to Admin r aner	
	User Name:	Password:
	Forgot your password?	Login

🍿 Magen	to ⁻ Admin Pa	nel		
FHC Patrons	Transactions	System		
			Film Se	arch
🔄 Orders			Film Ch	neck In
Rago II I	of 2 pages 1 Via	w 20 m	Film Re	eturn

Step 3:

Click the **check box** next to each film you are checking in.

Step 4:

From the Actions drop-down menu, click **Check in**.

Step 5: Click Submit.

Note: Films listed in inventory are ready for viewing by Family History Center patrons.

Step 6:

To save a copy of the report showing the films that were checked in, from the Export field, click the **down arrow**.

Step 7: From the drop-down menu, select CSV, Excel, or pdf.

Step 8: Click **Export**. Save your file to your hard drive.

Step 9: After the report has been saved, you will need to click the **Confirm Films Submissions** button.

Note: After the film submission has been confirmed, they are added to the inventory and an e-mail is sent to the patron.

ge 🛛	🖗 Search Fi	anes View 20	per page Total 25 rec
elect A	II Unselect All	Select Visible U	Jnselect Visible 1 items select
	Film #	Order #	Patron first name
ny 🔽			
	127949	100020	Paul
	1274989	<u>100022</u>	Paul
	6000056	<u>100022</u>	Paul
	1386658	<u>100022</u>	Paul







Mark Films as Returned

When films are ready to be returned, you will need to mark the films as "Returned." When films are marked "Returned" they are no longer part of your family history center's inventory.

Step 1:

Sign into the Online Film Ordering admin panel with your user name and password. Click the **Log in** button.

Step 2:

From the Films drop-down menu, click **Film Search**.

Step 3:

Find films that need to be returned within a date range, in the From: field; click the **calendar** icon to select a beginning date.

Step 4:

In the To: field, click the **calendar** icon to select an ending date.

Step 5:

To return all the films that have or will expire within the specified date range, click the **Select All** link. Alternatively, you can click each checkbox manually.

Step 6:

From the Actions drop-down menu, click the **down arrow**.

Step 7: Click Return.

Step 8:

Click the **Submit** button.

User Name:	Password:	
Forgot your password?		Login



	Film #	Order #	Patron first name	Patron last name	Patron email	Return Date
ny 💌						From: 📰
						To: 📰

Select All	Unselect All	Select Visible	Unselect Visible 0 items se	lected		Actions
	Film #	Order #	Patron first name	Patron last name	Patron email	Return Date
Any 💌						From: 📰 06/1/10
						To: 📰 06/2/10

🕅 Ma	agento ⁻ A	dmin Panel				Logged in as fhctest Monda Mortdale Aust	ry, May 3, 2010 <u>Lo</u> tralia Family History C
FHC Pa	trons Tran	isactions Syste	em <mark>Films</mark>			۲	Get help for this p
Sear	ch Films	and a Mary Da					
Select All	Unselect All	ages View 20	Jnselect Visible 12 items se	elected		Actions	Submit
	lm #	Order #	Patron first name	Patron last name	Patron email	Return Date	Im Status
Any 💌						From: 🛃 06/1	1/10
						To: 🛃 060	2/10
	215608	100072	Diane	Parton		01-Jun-2010	Shippe
	1470949	100076	Diane	Parton		01-Jun-2010	Receive
V	1596405	100080	Patricia	Brown		01-Jun-2010	Receive
V	1278898	100222	Diane	Parton		01-Jun-2010	Shippe
V	1278898	100223	Diane	Parton		01-Jun-2010	Shippe
V	1278898	100267	Diane	Parton		01-Jun-2010	Receive
V	1278898	100283	Heather	Coombs		01-Jun-2010	Shippe
V	1441074	100283	Heather	Coombs		01-Jun-2010	Receive
V	1278898	100284	Allan	Murrin		01-Jun-2010	Shippe
V	1441074	100285	<u>iames</u>	goodwin		01-Jun-2010	Shippe
V	1867119	100285	Patricia	Brown		01-Jun-2010	Shippe
F	1279999	100292	low	Murrie		01-lup-2010	Shippe

Step 9:

To save a copy of the report showing the films you checked in, from the Export field, click the **down arrow**.

Step 10:

From the drop-down menu, select **CSV**, **Excel**, or **pdf**.

Step 11: Click the Export button.

Step 12:

From the File Download dialog box, click the **Save** button.

Note: Decide where you want to save the information on your computer.

Step 13:

Click the **Save** button.

Step 14:

After you have saved the report, you will need to click the **Confirm Films Submissions** button.

Note: Your films will no longer show in the Films Search. You can search for the order by going to Transactions and then Orders. Search for your order using the order #.





Cancel Films Submission
Confirm Films Submiss

Online Film Ordering for Directors-January 2012 Copyright ©2012 IRI

Add Private Films to FHC Inventory

Family history centers can add films where no payment is needed and the film already resides in the center. Using this option allows you to select the loan type. The return date on a short-term loan is 90 days from today's date.

Magento Admin Panel

Step 1:

Once you have signed in to the Admin panel with your user name and password, click the **Log in** button.

u-der	Log in to Admin Pane	al	
	Uner Name:	Password.	
	Existing assessed		1000
	Wegenic is a tradement of Fuller Cores	ding Inc. DBA Yanimi. Copyright & 201	18 Instan Consulting Ro.

Step 2: From the Films drop-down menu, click Film Private Collection.



Step 3:

From the Films drop-down menu, enter the film number, and then click **Continue**.

Film Intro Film Int

Step 4: Click Add film to private collection.

Upload a CSV File

When you use the CSV import, it will assume all films are extended loans. If you need to upload a short-term loan, use the Private Film Collection option.

To upload a CSV file using the CSV File importer, do the following:

Step 1: Using a spreadsheet program such as Excel, open a spreadsheet. In the first column list all of the films you want to import.

Step 2: Save the file as a .csv file. **Note:** If you save it as a regular Excel file, the films will not import.

Step 3: From the Admin Panel, click on the **Films** tab.



FHC Patrons	Transactions System	n Films	
		Film Search	
Page 1	of 4 pages View 20	Film Private Collection	đ
ID	First Name	CSV File Importer for Films	st Name
From:		Film Check-In	
To :		Film Return	

Step 4: Click CSV File Importer for Films.

FHC Patro	ons	Transactions	System	Films	
				Film Search	
Page 🔢 1		of 4 pages Vie	w 20 💌	Film Private Collection	đ
ID		First Name		CSV File Importer for Films	t Name
From:				Film Check-In	
To :				Film Return	

Step 5: Click **Browse** to find the CSV file on your hard drive.

Step 6: Click the Upload Csv file button.

Note: Films uploaded into inventory using this method will show as "Extended."

If the upload was successful the films will display instantly. If there was a problem the film numbers will either appear as "0" or they won't appear at all.

If you experience problems, please verify that the CSV file is formatted correctly and try again.

If the inventory now lists "0" or isn't uploading, please contact Support.

CSV File Importer for Films								
The CSV File Impo	rter is designed to bring a spreadsheet fille							
1. Open a spreads	heet and in the first column list all of the film							
2. Save the file as 3. Click on Choose 4.Click Upload Csv	a .csv file. If you save it as a regular Excel t File and upload your .csv file. r file.							
2. Save the file as 3. Click on Choose 4.Click Upload Csv FHC center: TEST	a .csv file. If you save it as a regular Excel f File and upload your .csv file. file. CENTER							

FHC Patron Information

The FHC Patrons tab allows you to manage patron information. These are patrons who have your location as their designated family history center. You can modify a patron's address information, see their orders, or view restricted film information.

Step 1: Once you have signed in to the Admin Panel with your user name and password, click the **Log in** button.

Step 2: Click on the FHC Patrons tab.

Step 3: To find a patron, enter the last name in the Last Name field. Click the **Search** button.

Note: You can search by any of the fields showing on the bar. For example, search by zip code to see all patrons within the same zip code.

Aager	Log in to Admin Pa	anel	_
e	User Name:	Password:	
	Forgot your password?		Login

FHC P	atrons	Transactions	System	Films	
Page 💿	1	of 4 pages Vi	ew 20 🔹	per page (Total
ID		First Name			-
From: To :					

Step 4: To see additional information about a patron, click the **Edit** link.

Step 5:

The **Patron View** tab allows you to see personal information about a patron such as address, sales information, and recent orders.

Step 6:

Click Account Information.

The account information tab allows you to make changes to a patron's name or other personal information. Once you have made any changes, click the **Save Patron** button or the **Save and Continue Edit** button.

Note: You cannot reset or change passwords using the Password Management screen. All passwords are now managed by LDSFamilySearch Accounts. To change email addresses also see LDSFamilySearch Accounts

Step 7:

Click the **Addresses** tab. The Addresses tab allows you to manage address information for patrons. Patrons can have more than one address attached to their name. To add additional addresses, do the following:

- Click the Add New Address button.
- Select Default Billing Address or Default Shipping Address.
- Enter the patron's address information into the fields provided.
- Click the Save Patron button.







Patron Information

Patron Information

ting Profiles (1

Film Restriction Override

Patron View

A Warren Test Jones Test

Step 8:

Click the **Family History Center** tab. The Family History Center tab allows you to assign a family history to a patron's account. To do this, do the following:

- Search for the family history center by entering the name, email, telephone number, zip code, or state/province of the family history center. Click the Search button.
- Select the family history center by clicking the radio button next to the name of the center.From the Assigned drop-down menu, select Yes.
- Click the Save Patron button.

Step 9: Click the **Orders** tab. The Orders tab allows you to see all orders placed by a patron. You can search for an order using any of the search fields. For example, to search by order #, in the Order # field, enter the order # and then click the **Search** button.

Step 10: Click the **Film Restriction Override** to see restricted films a patron has been given permission to view.



(* Back Tieset @ Seve Patron @ Seve and Cost

								_	
Account Information	Page	1		of 1 pages View 20 * per p	page Total 1 records found			Reset	Fitter Search
Addresses	Assign	ed	D	Name	Email	Telephone	ZIP	Country 1	State/Province
Family History Center	Yes	•						All Coun +	
proers	0		5427	TEST CENTER	corralesb@familysearch.org	1111111111111	84150	United	Virgin Islands
Billing Agreements								States	
Recurring Profiles (beta)									
Shopping Cart									
Wishlist									
Newsletter									
Film Restriction Override									

Back Reset Delete Patron Save Patron Save and Cont



💣 Warren Test Jones Test

ed to overide film code re

Film Pricing

If a patron has not signed into the Online Film Ordering sytem, he or she will see the global USD film or fiche price. To see the price for your family history center, the patron must be signed in. There is one standard microfiche price regardless of the number of fiche assigned to the microfiche number.

Microfilm renewals are the same price as the regular loan price, regardless of how many times you renew the film.

Note: We do not handle sales tax anywhere in the US EXCEPT for California which is subject to a "use" tax. California tax is city-based and is calculated based on the Family History Center's physical address. The use tax is already calculated into the film price for California. As a result, each FHC in California has a slightly different film price.

Price Structure (Film prices are subject to change. Please check films website for updated pricing.)

Australia

Short-term: 7.75 AUD Long-term: 19.50 AUD Microfiche: 7.75 AUD

New Zealand

Short-term: 8.50 NZD Long-term: 21.25 NZD Microfiche: 5.00 NZD

British Isles

Short-term: 7.50 GBP Long-term: 18.75 GBP Microfiche: 3.00 GBP

United States

Short-term: 5.50 USD Long-term: \$13.75 USD Microfiche: \$4.75

Canada

Short-term microfilm loan: \$6.00 CAD Extended microfilm loan: \$15.00 CAD Extended microfiche loan: \$5.00 CAD

Austria, Belgium, Germany, France

Short-term microfilm loan: 8,50 Euro Extended microfilm loan: 21,25 Euro Extended microfiche loan: 3,50 Euro

Portugal

Short-term microfilm loan: 4,25 Euro Extended microfilm loan: 10,50 Euro Extended microfiche loan: 1,75 Euro

Malta

Short-term microfilm loan: 5,00 Euro Extended microfilm loan: 12,75 Euro Extended microfiche loan: 2,00 Euro

Cape Verde

Short-term microfilm loan: 0,85 Euro Extended microfilm loan: 2,00 Euro Extended microfiche loan: 0,35 Euro

Switzerland

Short-term microfilm loan: 13.00 CHF Extended microfilm loan: 33.50 CHF Extended microfiche loan: 5.00 CHF

Spain, Italy, Greece, and Slovenia

Short-term microfilm loan: 6, 00 Euro Extended microfilm loan: 15, 00 Euro Extended microfiche loan: 2, 50 Euro

Cyprus

Short-term microfilm loan: 5, 00 Euro Extended microfilm loan: 12, 50 Euro Extended microfiche loan: 2, 00 Euro

Poland

Short-term microfilm loan: 15, 00 Zloty Extended microfilm loan: 37, 50 Zloty Extended microfiche loan: 6, 51 Zloty

Hungary

Short-term microfilm loan: 1200.00 Ft Extended microfilm loan: 3000.00 Ft Extended microfiche loan: 501.50 Ft

Colombia

Short-term microfilm loan: FREE Extended microfiche loan: FREE

Guam

Short-term microfilm loan: FREE Extended microfiche loan: FREE

Patron Assistance Policy

- Do not openly advertise that films can be ordered by using Family History Center computers. You are allowed to mention that patrons can order films on any computer wired to the Internet such as computers found at home, work, public libraries, or even the Family History Center. **Do not give the impression that we are soliciting our computers to be used as kiosks for film ordering.**
- Do not directly assist patrons in completing an order online. If they need assistance or training in order to successfully place an order, go to a separate computer and walk them through the steps. Once they understand the process, exit out of the website and have the patron begin again from the beginning. **You should not be present during the ordering process**, especially on the final steps when the patron enters personal information such as billing address and credit card information.
- Do not place an order for a patron using your own personal credit card or the Church's, even if the patron reimburses you with cash. Never accept payment from a patron.

Microfilm Use Agreement

The following is the agreement each patron signs before placing a microfilm order:

Terms and Conditions for Access to Microfilm:

You have requested that FamilySearch International ("us," "we" or like terms) loan one or more of our microfilm to a Family History Center ("FHC") where you can view the microfilm. You acknowledge that all microfilm loaned remains our sole property. You agree that you will not remove microfilms from the FHC to which they are shipped. You agree that you will not make any unauthorized copies of the images on a microfilm in any format (photocopy, digital or analogue photos, video, etc.). You agree that use of some microfilm is restricted based on your geographic location or your membership in The Church of Jesus Christ of Latter-day Saints. If you provide untrue information when requesting a microfilm, that microfilm may be returned to us without refund of any service fees paid. Additional legal restrictions on the use of microfilm may be posted in at the FHC, on the packaging, or as part of the images within a microfilm. You agree to fully and carefully abide by all such restrictions.

You may only view microfilms at a FHC during its hours of operation. We are not responsible for your inability to view a microfilm at your selected FHC or any FHC. Microfilm that you request will typically be delivered to a FHC between 7 and 180 days after your request is sent depending on many factors. We are under no obligation to deliver the microfilm and may unilaterally cancel your order in our sole and absolute discretion. Microfilm will not be shipped to a FHC you designate unless your service fees have been successfully collected (via the credit card or bank account information that you provide). If we determine a microfilm is no longer available for loan or cannot be delivered, service fees paid for delivery of that microfilm will be refunded to you. If you request multiple microfilms, they may be shipped separately (and at different times) to the FHC. Delivery date cannot be determined via this Web site. You should contact the FHC to inquire about microfilm you have requested.

You agree to handle all microfilm with care and as instructed by FHC staff members. You are responsible for the damage and cost resulting from your misuse or mishandling of the microfilm. Microfilm are provided 'as is,' and we do not warrant or guarantee that any microfilm will be in any

certain condition, that it will contain the information you are seeking or that the images on a microfilm are legible. The loan period for each microfilm is 90 days, which begins when the film is shipped from by us to the FHC. You may renew the loan for 60 additional days via this Web site. Renewals must be initiated at least ten days before the 90-day loan period ends. You must show the FHC a copy of the email you receive as evidence of your renewal. At the end of the loan period, the FHC will return the microfilms to us. In addition, we reserve the right to withdraw any microfilm from any FHC at any time for any or no reason. You will have first priority to use microfilms you have requested, but acknowledge that other visitors to a FHC may, without cost, also have access to and use those microfilms.

Limitations of Liability: Neither we nor any of our affiliates are liable for any special, incidental, exemplary, or consequential damages resulting from your use of, or your inability to use, any materials loaned by us, including, but not limited to, lost profits, and business interruption even if we, the FHC or any affiliated entity have been advised of the possibility of or could have foreseen any of the excluded damages. In no event shall our (or our affiliates') total liability to you under any legal theory for all damages, losses, and causes of action exceed the amount you have paid to us.

DISCLAIMER: THE LOANED MATERIALS INCLUDING ALL MICROFILM OR OTHER ITEMS LOANDED OR PURCHASED THROUGH THIS SITE, ARE PROVIDED ON AN "AS IS" AND "AS AVAILABLE" BASIS, WITHOUT REPRESENTATIONS OR WARRANTIES OF ANY KIND, EITHER EXPRESS OR IMPLIED. TO THE FULLEST EXTENT PERMISSIBLE UNDER APPLICABLE LAW, WE DISCLAIM ALL WARRANTIES, EXPRESS OR IMPLIED, INCLUDING, BUT NOT LIMITED TO, WARRANTIES OF TITLE AND IMPLIED WARRANTIES OF MERCHANTABILITY AND FITNESS FOR A PARTICULAR PURPOSE. WE DO NOT REPRESENT OR WARRANT THAT THE ITEMS LOANED ARE FREE OF DEFECTS OR HARMFUL COMPONENTS.

Jurisdiction and Applicable Law: This Agreement contains the entire agreement between us regarding your use of our loaned or sold materials including all microfilm; it supersedes all previous and contemporaneous oral or written agreements and may be changed only by a written agreement signed by both parties or by an alteration to this document as posted on this Web site. No action or statement, whether oral or written, by our staff members, FHC staff or any affiliated entity staff shall alter any term of this agreement. This agreement and your use of our materials shall be governed by the laws of the State of Utah, United States of America, as applied to agreements entered into and to be performed entirely within that state, without giving effect to any principles of conflicts of law. Both parties each agree to seek in good faith to resolve any dispute arising between us, failing which, any action you bring to enforce this agreement or any matters related to the use of loaned or purchased materials including microfilm shall be brought solely in an appropriate state or federal court located in Salt Lake County, Utah. You hereby consent and submit to the personal jurisdiction of such courts for the purposes of litigating any such action and hereby waive any objection to forum or venue based on forum non conveniens. This agreement will not be governed by the United Nations Convention on Contracts for the International Sale of Goods. If any provision of this agreement is unlawful, void, or unenforceable in whole or in part, the remaining provisions shall not be affected, unless we determine that the invalid or unenforceable provision is an essential term of the agreement, in which case we may at our sole discretion amend the agreement.

FamilySearch Support

E-mail

- <u>films@familysearch.org</u>
- Use the Contact Us link at the bottom of the FamilySearch Microfilm Ordering Web site.

Toll-free telephone numbers

• To find the toll-free number in your area, click: <u>https://www.familysearch.org/help/contact</u> .